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HISTORIC PRESERVATION CERTIFICATION APPLICATION  
PART 1 – EVALUATION OF SIGNIFICANCE

Property address

Property name 30 East Fifteenth Street NPS Project Number

45202-7055 OHHamiltonCincinnati30 East Fifteenth Street

5.   Description of physical appearance
Built c., 1882, the building at 30 East Fifteenth Street is located on the north side of Fifteenth 
Street between Moore and Walnut Street. The building is included within Over-the-Rhine National 
Register-listed Historic District (NR 83001985). The four-story structure with an attic level is 
rectangular in shaped with a shallow step-back at the rear of the building. The residential 
structure was designed in the Queen Anne style. The symmetrical exterior of the building was 
constructed in a red brick running bond and common bond. The structure sits on a stone foundation 
with a full basement. The south façade has a side-gable roof with a conventional pitch sloping to 
the south and north. The rear of the building has a shed roof sloping from west to east. The 
roofline of the south façade is outlined with a cornice, decorative brackets, a box gutter, and 
eave windows. There are chimneys remaining. The existing building is approximately twenty feet in 
width and fifty feet in length. The building is freestanding with two narrow passageways to the 
west and east.    
    
The south façade and the east, north, and west elevations contribute to the historic integrity of 
the building and have minimal alterations. Known alterations include brick infilled windows on the 
east elevation, the addition of storm windows on all windows, and a metal fire escape added to the 
rear setback. The south façade has a preserved projecting oriel windows extending from the second 
to the third floor. The windows are historic one-over-one, double-hung wood windows. The projecting 
bay is constructed out of wood with pressed metal detailing. Details include fluted pilasters, 
scallop detailing with disks, and a dentil cornice. Above each window is a stone string course with 
a reed pattern and scallop detailing. The windows at the fourth floor have bracketed headers 
between each window. At each floor line a projected stone banding runs the width of the building. 
The east, north, and west elevations are simple in detail with a brick common bond and two over two 
wood windows.   
 
The interior residence retains its historic integrity through the design, workmanship, and 
materials. In 1999 the building was renovated using historic tax credits. Renovations included 
fixing doors in place, a new spiral staircase from the first to second floor, vinyl composition 
tile (VCT) in the stair hall and kitchen and bath areas, carpet in bedroom areas, adding new 
mechanical closets and exposed ductwork, drywall closets in bedroom areas, and upgrading  modern 
kitchens and baths. Many historic details remain intact and the historic layout remains largely 
unchanged. Historic elements include baseboards, wood panel doors, window and door trim, transoms, 
wood stairs with wainscoting, historic balustrades and newel post, fireplaces, and a historic light 
well. The mantel, apron, pilasters, plinth block, and trim panels remain intact on the fireplaces.  

Has building been moved?

Date(s) of building(s) c. 1882 Date(s) of alteration(s) 1999

no yes, specify date

6.   Statement of significance
The building is located within the Over-the-Rhine Historic District (NR 83001985). The district is 
significant for its collection of Vernacular, Greek Revival, Queen Anne, Italianate residential and 
commercial buildings dating from 1840 to c.1928. The majority of the structures are two-, three-, 
and four-story brick constructed during the second half of the nineteenth century. Within the 362.5 
acres of the original German community, the area surrounding Vine, Main, and Walnut Street was the 
central commercial district within Over-the-Rhine. Located in the south central portion of the 
district it was an area primarily used for businesses with dwelling units on the upper- stories.  
The primary commercial streets included Main, Walnut and Vine Street. These wide streets run north 
and south and are intersected by Twelfth, Thirteenth, Fourteenth, and Fifteenth Street.  30 East 
Fifteenth Street is located on the north side of Fifteenth Street between Vine and Walnut Street.   
 
The high-density neighborhood includes many Italianate and Queen Anne structures built during the 
middle to late nineteenth century. Fifteenth Street is lined with two- and four-story Italianate 
and Queen Anne dwellings that display a distinctive streetscape. According to the 1891 Sanborn Map 
the area was primarily residential with retail spaces on the ground floor. These brick buildings 
are simple in style and have low- sloping roofs, bracketed cornices, eave windows, and stone window 
headers and sills with rectangular sashes. The 30th block of Fifteenth Street retains several 
structures that contribute to the integrity of the district and are labeled as Historic Structures 
on the Ohio Historic Inventory guide. 
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The building at 30 Fifteenth Street is significant as a contributing building to the Over-the-Rhine 
Historic District. It contributes to the district because it is a good example of early community 
life in German Cincinnati during the nineteenth century as well as an excellent example of Queen 
Anne architecture. Built in c.1882, it was also constructed within the period of significance 
established for the district. 
 

7.   Photographs and maps.  Send photographs and map with application.


